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1                              Thursday, April 14, 2022

2                                          10:07 a.m.

3                           - - -

4             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Let's go on the record at 

5 this time.  Public Utilities Commission of Ohio has 

6 assigned for hearing at this time Case 21-787-EL-CSS, that 

7 concerns the complaint of Patricia Raymond versus Ohio 

8 Edison Company. 

9             I'll note that this hearing is taking place 

10 electronically via Webex.  I'm Jim Lynn, the Attorney 

11 Examiner assigned to hear this case and at this time have 

12 the appearances of the parties. 

13             Miss Raymond, if you could just state your 

14 name and address, please.  Can you hear me?  

15             MS. RAYMOND:  Every other word.

16             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Oh, okay.  Could you state 

17 your name and address, please?  

18             MS. RAYMOND:  Patricia Raymond.

19             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  And your address?  

20             MS. RAYMOND:  3790 Woodbury Oval, Stow, Ohio 

21 44224.

22             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Great.  Thank you.  And 

23 then for Ohio Edison Mr. Rogers, please.

24             MR. ROGERS:  Christopher Rogers from Benesch, 

25 Friedlander on behalf of Ohio Edison.  My address is 200 
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1 Public Square in Cleveland, Ohio.

2             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Okay.  Thank you, 

3 Mr. Rogers. 

4             Okay.  Miss Raymond, since you filed the 

5 complaint, we'll let you get under way and then as you 

6 discuss things, I may have questions for you, perhaps 

7 Mr. Rogers will, but Miss Raymond, although, of course, 

8 you filed a written complaint, for the purposes of our 

9 court reporter and the record of this hearing, if you 

10 could describe what your complaint against Ohio Edison 

11 involves or why you filed the complaint.

12             MS. RAYMOND:  I missed the last few words that 

13 you said.

14             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Okay.  If you could just 

15 describe -- 

16             MS. NICKEL:  What he wants you to do is to 

17 give the reason that you are submitting a claim against 

18 Ohio Edison.  What occurred?  

19             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  What happened?  

20             MS. RAYMOND:  All right.  Are you there?  

21             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  I'm still here.  Go ahead.

22             MS. RAYMOND:  I missed the last two words of 

23 your sentence.

24             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  No problem.

25             MS. RAYMOND:  Okay.  You want me to do like a 
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1 time frame from the beginning what happened?  

2             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Sure.  Yeah, describe what 

3 happened.

4                     DIRECT EXAMINATION

5 BY MS. RAYMOND: 

6        Q.   On February 23rd, a technician named Joe from 

7 Wellington knocked on my door and said he was going to 

8 install the smart meter.  My electricity would be out for 

9 15 seconds. 

10             Within minutes of him leaving, I was sitting 

11 at my kitchen table writing my bills out.  My refrigerator 

12 and my appliances were all next to me and I hear this real 

13 loud blast.  And I looked up and the microwave and the 

14 oven were flashing and flashing and the refrigerator, 

15 which was next to me, it almost sounded like a shotgun it 

16 was so loud. 

17             And it -- it stopped working.  I opened the 

18 door and the lights were flashing and flashing and so I 

19 called Wellington right away and I spoke with a Linda and 

20 I told her, I said the refrigerator is going crazy.  She 

21 advised me to pull the refrigerator out and try to reboot 

22 it.  

23             So I pulled the refrigerator out, unplugged it 

24 and waited a little bit and then plugged it back in.  It 

25 was still doing the same thing. 
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1             So she -- they sent a -- I guess it was a 

2 foreman, it wasn't Joe.  It was somebody else came and he 

3 came in and it was doing the same thing when he was here.  

4             And he said he checked the meter.  The meter 

5 was fine.  I said, well, something happened.  And then 

6 within -- I finally got the oven and the microwave 

7 synchronized and they seemed to be all right.  But the 

8 refrigerator, we couldn't do anything.  I had to keep 

9 unplugging it. 

10             I had food in the freezer and refrigerator.  I 

11 couldn't afford to lose it.  So I would unplug it and then 

12 it would work for a little bit and I unplugged it, but the 

13 appliance man couldn't come out for three days I believe 

14 it was.  

15             And so I did that continually until he was 

16 able to get here and he worked on it, worked on the 

17 electric panel.  I have a counter depth refrigerator, 

18 which was only like five or six years old at that time and 

19 he said that it was something in the switch and he said I 

20 can't guarantee -- something on the board.  I guess he 

21 meant the mother board of the refrigerator.  He tweaked it 

22 and he said, now, it should be okay, he said, but if it 

23 isn't, call me back. 

24             So it worked for a few days, but I was without 

25 the refrigerator for over three days.  So I lost a lot of 



Proceedings

Armstrong & Okey, Inc., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481

9

1 the food that was in the freezer.  I didn't have a lot in 

2 the refrigerator. 

3             But so after that then, when I sat down to 

4 watch TV, my TVs, two of them said -- what do you call 

5 that?  What do you call that?  The hard drive -- the hard 

6 drive.  It said hard drive broken.  So I checked the other 

7 and it said hard drive broken.  So I had to have them come 

8 out.  I had the refrigerator man come out. 

9             Then the house started to get cold because it 

10 was February and I went to adjust the thermostat and it 

11 was dark.  There was nothing there.  So it wasn't working.  

12             So I wasn't able to get a technician out, I 

13 believe it was the next day.  And in the meantime my -- 

14 the temperature went down to 50 degrees.  I have 

15 rheumatoid arthritis.  I have health issues.  It was hard 

16 to keep warm.  I had electric blankets and that, but 

17 anyhow. 

18             So he was able -- he changed the thermostat 

19 and he checked the furnace and he thought it was okay.  

20 The thermostat was working fine, but I was uncomfortable 

21 with my furnace because it was maybe five or six years old 

22 at the most.  So I had the -- Blind & Sons is who 

23 installed it.  I had them come out and he checked it and 

24 he said that they -- he had not set it at the right -- he 

25 didn't set it for a two-stage furnace.  So he fixed that.  
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1             So that's been fine.  Then I had the --

2             MS. NICKEL:  In-house vac.

3             MS. RAYMOND:  I mean, it wasn't working.  I 

4 mean, it turned on, but the brushes weren't going.  So 

5 that needed a switch.  So I had to have another service 

6 call. 

7             This was all during the pandemic, which I 

8 hadn't had anyone in my house for a year and so it was 

9 very uncomfortable for me to have all these technicians 

10 come into my house during this pandemic.  

11             But that -- let's see. 

12             MS. NICKEL:  How about the communications with 

13 Ohio Edison?  

14             MS. RAYMOND:  Oh, yes.  The Ohio Edison, they 

15 had what the -- the technician that came out to check the 

16 meter and check the refrigerator after everything went 

17 crazy, he claims in the report that you sent from Ohio 

18 Edison that he said my refrigerator was the result of the 

19 door being open too long and he said that I said, yes, I 

20 was -- I was cleaning my refrigerator and the door was 

21 open for an extended period of time.  I said nothing like 

22 that.  I said nothing like that.  

23             So anyhow, I have -- I dispute that.  And it 

24 was something else.  Oh, the fact that Ohio Edison said 

25 that I had never filed a claim with Ohio Edison.  Yet on 
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1 March 9th, I called Ohio Edison.  Flora, an Ohio Edison 

2 representative told me to contact PUCO.  Flora also told 

3 me that Wellington is not under PUCO regulation and asked 

4 if a claim was filed with Ohio Edison. 

5             She told me that she was working on the claim 

6 on their end.  I was also told that PUCO can reach out to 

7 Wellington, but can't award damages because they are not a 

8 utility company.  And I said, but they were hired by Ohio 

9 Edison.  They should -- somebody should take 

10 responsibility for it.  

11             Let's see, but that -- that really upset me 

12 when I read that, that he said that I said I was cleaning 

13 my refrigerator and that it was open for an extended 

14 period of time. 

15             Regardless, if it is open -- if it is open for 

16 an extended period of time, it has a little sensor that 

17 tells you the door is open.  I was sitting here.  There 

18 was nothing.  I had not cleaned my refrigerator.  So 

19 anyhow, I disputed that.  

20             So that's -- but I have who I spoke with.  

21 Let's see.  February 23rd, that's when it happened, right 

22 within minutes of him coming to the door and then whoever 

23 this foreman was that come out to check after I made the 

24 complaint, which was not long, maybe half an hour later.  

25 Why didn't he knock on my door to let me see which meter 
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1 he was checking? 

2             So I'm just -- I had to go by his word and the 

3 same with Ohio Edison when they claimed they sent somebody 

4 out to check.  No one came to my door and asked or told 

5 me -- I live in a condo.  Wouldn't have been that hard for 

6 them to come to the door to give me a clue that somebody 

7 was there checking the meter.   So I -- there is no proof 

8 to me that anyone was even here. 

9             I think that was it.  But then I spoke with 

10 Linda and Linda told me on what to do on February 23rd.  

11 On February 23rd, Bruce, I think, was the technician that 

12 came out from Wellington. 

13             February 24th, I spoke with Matt from 

14 Wellington who indicated he would file a claim. 

15             March 2nd, I spoke with Matt.  March 8th spoke 

16 with Jessica from Ohio Edison, who transferred me to the 

17 voicemail of Flora from the claims department. 

18             March 8th, tried to speak with Matt from 

19 Wellington twice.  March 9th, I spoke with Maureen from 

20 PUCO to file a claim and then -- let's see. 

21             I believe all service -- all service 

22 professionals believe that damages were directly caused by 

23 the installation of the new meter.

24             MR. ROGERS:  Objection, Your Honor.  We move 

25 to strike.  That is all hearsay.
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1             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Okay.  We'll strike that.  

2 I understand why Miss Raymond said that.

3             MS. RAYMOND:  That was the last statement I 

4 made.

5             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Thank you.  Miss Rogers, 

6 I'm sorry, Miss Raymond, just so I understand then, the 

7 person said after -- after this smart meter was installed 

8 and you are saying it was shortly after that installation 

9 that you began to notice problems with your appliances. 

10             When you got in touch -- when you made a call 

11 about those problems, then the persons that you -- that 

12 came out to your home, you are saying they were 

13 Wellington?  

14             MS. RAYMOND:  Bruce was the foreman.  He was 

15 to come out and see what was going on.  I guess Linda 

16 called him.

17             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  And Bruce, this gentleman 

18 was a Wellington employee then?  

19             MS. RAYMOND:  Correct.

20             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Okay.  And you are saying 

21 that you never actually had someone -- you never -- after 

22 these problems came up, you never actually spoke to in 

23 person anyone from Ohio Edison, it was just Wellington 

24 employees, right?  

25             MS. RAYMOND:  Right, right.
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1             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  And the problems that you 

2 are describing with your, you know, for example, with your 

3 refrigerator, with your televisions, with your vacuum 

4 cleaner, apparently with the furnace, too, those problems 

5 did they all -- you noticed all of them like the same day 

6 that the smart meter was installed; am I right about that?  

7             MS. RAYMOND:  Yes.  Yes.

8             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  I see.  Okay.  Okay.  I 

9 have no more questions right now, but we may come back to 

10 you for questions later. 

11             And we'll go to Mr. Rogers.  Mr. Rogers, did 

12 you have any questions for Miss Raymond?  

13             MR. ROGERS:  Yes, I do, Your Honor.

14                     CROSS-EXAMINATION

15 BY MR. ROGERS:

16        Q.   Miss Raymond, are you seeking damages as a 

17 result of your, I believe, it was your furnace, the 

18 furnace repair?

19        A.   No, well, the furnace there were four -- 

20             MS. NICKEL:  Yes, in total she is seeking 

21 damages for the in-house vacuum, the thermostat and 

22 furnace repair, the refrigerator repair.  We did not get a 

23 bill from the cable service and then the loss of the food.  

24             MS. RAYMOND:  And this Blind & Sons.

25             MS. NICKEL:  That is part of the furnace and 
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1 thermostat.

2             MS. RAYMOND:  This is different than this.  

3 This is Greer.

4             MS. NICKEL:  Yeah.

5 BY MR. ROGERS:

6        Q.   You are saying you don't have any invoices 

7 from the television/cable repair; is that accurate?

8        A.   Well, I -- they said that -- they came out.  

9 They said it would be $95 to come out.  $95 to repair.  

10 And what was the other one -- it was three things.  It was 

11 going to be almost $300.  I never received -- that's been 

12 over a year.

13             MS. NICKEL:  She did a promotional program if 

14 they upgraded her system.  They replaced the hard drive, 

15 her DVR boxes, I forget what else and if she -- but she 

16 had to pay a monthly fee in order to do this and they 

17 waived all of the charges for the install.

18             MS. RAYMOND:  So I'm not asking for anything 

19 from the cable company.  

20 BY MR. ROGERS:

21        Q.   I'm looking at some of the documents that you 

22 sent over and it sounds like the issue with your furnace 

23 was and I quote, "found control board was not set 

24 correctly for single stage thermostat?"

25        A.   That was the original.  Yes, that was the 



Proceedings

Armstrong & Okey, Inc., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481

16

1 original.  I couldn't get -- that was the only heating 

2 company I could get out.  

3             MS. NICKEL:  Because it was winter, because it 

4 was cold and the thermostat was blown, she needed a new 

5 thermostat.  It was not responding to the furnace.  The 

6 initial company, Greer, came out to install a new 

7 thermostat.  He checked the furnace, but he had not set 

8 the thermostat and furnace for a two-stage furnace, which 

9 is what my mom has.  

10             My mom did not feel comfortable and had Blind 

11 & Sons, who are the installers of the furnace come out and 

12 check, that was after the fact.  I think the receipt is 

13 dated -- the Greer receipt is 3/8.  And the Blind & Sons 

14 receipt -- 

15             MS. RAYMOND:  Was 3/2.

16             MS. NICKEL:  That is when you paid Greer.  

17 When did Greer came out?   Greer came out earlier.  

18             MS. RAYMOND:   Greer came out on the -- 

19             MS. NICKEL:  2/26.  Greer came out on 2/26.  

20 Blind & Sons came out on 3/2.  

21             MR. ROGERS:  My apologies.  What is your name?  

22             MS. NICKEL:  I am Joelle Raymond Nickel.  I'm 

23 Patricia's daughter.

24             MR. ROGERS:  And were you personally here when 

25 they came out to service these appliances?  
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1             MS. NICKEL:  No, I was not.

2             MR. ROGERS:  Your Honor, I move to strike all 

3 of her testimony as she has no personal knowledge about 

4 any of these issues.

5             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  I think I'll let Joelle's 

6 testimony stand.  You know, her mother is representing 

7 herself and we'll give Joelle's testimony the appropriate 

8 weight.  She is trying to help her mother through this 

9 situation that her mother, I'm sure, didn't expect to be 

10 in particular testifying in a court type proceeding.  So 

11 we'll let that testimony stand.  

12             MS. RAYMOND:  Thank you.  I appreciate that 

13 because since it was a pandemic, I had no one in my house.  

14 When Jodi needed -- when I needed something, she didn't 

15 come past the garage and so she couldn't be a witness and 

16 besides she has a job.  

17 BY MR. ROGERS:

18        Q.   Miss Raymond, when was your house constructed?

19        A.   In 1997.  

20        Q.   And were you the first occupant in this house?

21        A.   Yes.  

22        Q.   So you have lived there since 1997?

23        A.   Yes, December 16th.  

24        Q.   When did you replace your furnace?

25        A.   I did about six years ago, five or six years 
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1 ago.  

2        Q.   And what type of furnace do you have?

3        A.   Trane.  It is a Trane.  

4        Q.   Let me rephrase that.  Is it gas or an 

5 electric furnace?

6        A.   It is gas.

7             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Gas furnace.

8 BY MR. ROGERS:

9        Q.   And when Ohio Edison came to replace your 

10 furnace, did they violate any statutory or regulatory 

11 requirements or sorry, when they came to replace your 

12 smart meter, did Ohio Edison violate any statutory or 

13 regulatory -- 

14        A.   I'm sorry, I can't -- 

15             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  If you could slow down.

16             THE WITNESS:  I can't understand.  It is 

17 muted.  It is like every other word. 

18 BY MR. ROGERS:

19        Q.   Miss Raymond, when Ohio Edison came to your 

20 condo to replace their smart meter, did they violate any 

21 statutory or regulatory requirements during that 

22 replacement?

23        A.   I don't know what would be -- what they should 

24 have said, but that's all he said to me was I'm here to 

25 install your smart meter and your electric will be off for 
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1 15 seconds.  He never said to unplug anything.  He never 

2 said -- that was about the extent of the conversation.  He 

3 went -- had the meter in his arm and he took off.  

4             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Miss Raymond, that 

5 actually was -- again, that was someone from Wellington?  

6             MS. RAYMOND:  It was from Wellington, right.  

7             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  From Wellington?  

8             MS. RAYMOND:  That was Joe from Wellington.

9             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  All right.  

10 BY MR. ROGERS:

11        Q.   It looks like you reported a claim on or about 

12 March 9th, 2021; is that accurate?

13        A.   With the PUCO.  

14        Q.   I do not know who it was.  I believe --

15        A.   Okay.  

16        Q.   -- attached to your complaint you listed a 

17 bunch of documents, looks like a contact log from the 

18 Commission; is that accurate?

19        A.   Well, a lot of it was just notes that I wrote 

20 as things went on.  On March 9th, I spoke with Maureen 

21 from PUCO to file a claim.  

22        Q.   And in those notes it claims that the caller 

23 states it blew her thermostat, two TVs, and her vacuum; is 

24 that accurate?

25        A.   My thermostat, my refrigerator, my in-house 
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1 vacuum, and the two TVs.  

2        Q.   Then later on -- go ahead.  

3        A.   I'm not including the two TVs.  I never 

4 received a bill, so...  

5        Q.   But then later on in the body of your 

6 complaint you said that you had to make repairs to your 

7 refrigerator, TVs, cable service, thermostat, and in-house 

8 vacuum system; is that accurate?

9        A.   Yes.  

10        Q.   Why didn't you include the refrigerator and 

11 your furnace in your previous complaints to the 

12 Commission?

13        A.   I did from the very first day was the 

14 refrigerator.  It all went.  That's what I called to 

15 complain about from the very beginning.  And this Linda 

16 from Wellington, I was on the phone with her when the 

17 refrigerator was going crazy.  She said -- 

18        Q.   I'm having connection issues with her from my 

19 end to hers.  

20             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  You are not alone.

21             MS. CHILCOTE:  Jim, this is Heather.  We are 

22 having -- if I can make a suggestion, perhaps if she turns 

23 off her video it may help with streaming the audio.  That 

24 is up to you.  That is a suggestion I can make.

25             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  I think that would be a 
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1 wise idea.  It might help.  I have had it help before. 

2             MS. CHILCOTE:  Ms. Raymond, just turn your 

3 video off and leave your audio on.  That may help you with 

4 hearing everyone and everyone hearing you as well.

5             MS. RAYMOND:  I'm having trouble hearing too.  

6 Okay.  Now -- 

7             MS. CHILCOTE:  At the bottom where you start 

8 video, initially when you hit that oval button to start 

9 video, if you just pull that drop down.  There you go.  

10             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Okay.  Yes, thank you.  

11 That might help.  Sometimes the connection can be a little 

12 tricky, so...  

13             MS. RAYMOND:  Okay.  

14             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  You are hearing loud and 

15 clear now.  Hopefully that will continue to be the case.  

16             MS. NICKEL:  It seems to be better.  It is not 

17 buffering or gargled.

18             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Thank you.  Thank you for 

19 persisting through that. 

20             Mr. Rogers, go ahead.  I think we are hearing 

21 everything all right now.

22 BY MR. ROGERS:

23        Q.   So Miss Raymond, do you have any actual damage 

24 to the furnace itself or are you just claiming damage to 

25 the thermostat?
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1        A.   No, the refrigerator was the big complaint.  

2 That was the first thing when I called Wellington.  And 

3 the microwave and oven seemed to go back to normal.  

4             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Miss Raymond though, 

5 Mr. Rogers was asking was there -- about the furnace.  Was 

6 there actually damage to the furnace itself?  

7             THE WITNESS:  I don't believe so.  It was just 

8 it needed to be reset because the other technician from 

9 Greer, he is the one that installed the thermostat and he 

10 checked it.  It just didn't seem right.  That's why I 

11 called the installer, the person that installed the 

12 furnace.  He said, well, it was -- he fixed the two-stage, 

13 from one-stage to two-stage, which is what it normally had 

14 been.

15             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  I see.  

16 BY MR. ROGERS:

17        Q.   So -- 

18             MS. NICKEL:  May I add to that statement for 

19 my mom?  

20             MR. ROGERS:  We'll probably object based on 

21 lack of knowledge.

22             MS. NICKEL:  It is just a clarification.  And 

23 yes, it is, from what you are saying, it is third-hand 

24 knowledge, but I have been intimately involved in this 

25 process with my mom from the start. 
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1             And my understanding of this is that the issue 

2 with the furnace was that Greer, who was not familiar with 

3 the furnace, he came to install the thermostat, set the 

4 thermostat for a one-stage furnace not a two-stage 

5 furnace. 

6             The furnace was not responding the way that it 

7 should have been, which my mom is very astute and has been 

8 very meticulous in maintaining her home and she called 

9 Blind & Sons who installed the furnace six years ago and 

10 asked them to come out to check it because it was not 

11 responding the way that she was accustomed to. 

12             So they did and they indicated at that time 

13 that the thermostat and the furnace were not syncing 

14 correctly because the thermostat had been set for a 

15 one-stage furnace, not a two-stage furnace.  

16             So that was the reason that Blind & Sons was 

17 called out to the premise.  

18 BY MR. ROGERS:

19        Q.   Blind & Sons was fixing an error made by a 

20 previous contractor?

21             MS. NICKEL:  Correct.

22 BY MR. ROGERS:

23        Q.   Did Ohio Edison cause the error -- did Ohio 

24 Edison do anything relating to the programming of a single 

25 stage instead of a dual stage thermometer?
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1             MS. NICKEL:  Not directly.  But had the 

2 installation of the smart meter not been an issue with any 

3 of the appliances or in-house systems to begin with, it 

4 would not have necessitated all of these service calls in 

5 the height of the pandemic.  

6 BY MR. ROGERS:

7        Q.   How old was the in-house vacuum at this time?

8        A.   It was -- it was installed when we built the 

9 condo 1997 or 1998, one of those, '97, '98.  

10        Q.   And have you ever had any service calls on it 

11 previous to this?

12        A.   No, not service calls.  I have had, oh, 

13 probably 10 or 12 years ago Beem came out just to check 

14 everything.

15             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  That was -- what was the 

16 name of that company, ma'am?  

17             THE WITNESS:  Beem.  B-e-e-m.

18             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Okay.  Oh, Beem.  Is that 

19 just sort of periodic maintenance or something?  

20             THE WITNESS:  Yes.

21             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Okay.  

22 BY MR. ROGERS:

23        Q.   How old was your refrigerator?

24        A.   Probably -- that was a year ago.  I want to 

25 say five or six years old, maybe seven.  I get that mixed 
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1 up with the furnace.  So they were both under seven years. 

2        Q.   And when you describe that your oven and 

3 microwave, I'm paraphrasing, were going crazy, can you 

4 describe that a little more?

5        A.   Yeah, they were flashing, flashing and 

6 flashing.  So I was able -- I don't know what I did.  I 

7 went over and opened the doors and they both seemed to go 

8 back to normal after about five minutes.  So I'm not 

9 claiming anything with those. 

10        Q.   Are you claiming that that is evidence of a 

11 power surge?

12        A.   I don't know if it was a power -- something 

13 definitely happened because I -- I have heard when the 

14 electric goes off, you know, during the storm or 

15 something, I can hear.  It is real soft when it comes back 

16 on, when all the appliances come back.  Never like this. 

17             This was like a shotgun and minutes after he 

18 was at the door saying he is going to install this, I 

19 couldn't believe what happened.  And so that's when -- 

20 when the refrigerator right away, it sounded like it came 

21 from the refrigerator. 

22             So definitely something was -- whether the 

23 technician didn't turn something off or disconnect 

24 something, I don't have any proof of that.  That's what -- 

25 I feel something happened that -- that made all my 
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1 appliances go. 

2             And the reason I didn't realize right away 

3 about the TV, I didn't have the TV on.  It was a few hours 

4 later when I sat down turned the TV on and said hard drive 

5 broken, both of them said that. 

6             And then not until the house started to get 

7 cold, I went to turn the thermostat up and it was dark.  

8 And the thermostat wasn't that old.  It was put in when 

9 the furnace was put in. 

10             And it was -- it was a -- it had all the bells 

11 and whistles on it.  I said I didn't want -- I just wanted 

12 a simple thermostat installed, so that's what Greer did. 

13             And then that's when I realized that 

14 something -- I thought at that time it was the furnace 

15 because no matter what I did with the thermostat, nothing 

16 happened and my house got down to 50 degrees.  So they 

17 couldn't come out.  That's the reason I called Greer is my 

18 company couldn't, Blind & Sons wasn't able to come out for 

19 a few days.  So I needed my heat on. 

20             So I called Greer and he came out and that's 

21 when he fixed the thermostat and checked the furnace.  But 

22 he didn't -- he should have set the thermostat for a 

23 two-stage furnace and evidently he didn't because when 

24 Blind & Sons came back out, that's when he found -- he 

25 found what was wrong with the furnace was it was set for 
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1 one-stage instead of a two-stage, the thermostat.  So he 

2 fixed that. 

3        Q.   How often do you have power outages at your 

4 condo with little storms or other activities?

5        A.   Maybe two or three times a year. 

6        Q.   And does your microwave flash after that power 

7 outage?

8        A.   Well, I'm not sitting at the kitchen so I 

9 wouldn't know if it did or not.  A lot of times the 

10 electric goes out at night.  But no, whenever it comes 

11 back on it is just like a little hum and then the lights 

12 come on.  Nothing what I experienced with this. 

13        Q.   Do you currently have any issues with your 

14 power supply?

15        A.   My power supply as far as what?    

16        Q.   Do you currently have any issues with the 

17 operation of the electricity to your condo?

18        A.   No.  

19        Q.   Have you ever looked at your meter?

20        A.   You mean checked?  

21        Q.   I'm sorry, ma'am.  Let me rephrase. 

22             Have you looked at your meter since, I guess, 

23 since February 23rd, 2021 I believe?  

24        A.   I glanced at it.  I didn't know what I was 

25 supposed to be looking at.  
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1        Q.   Have you seen any scorch marks?

2        A.   I don't -- any scorch marks?  Is that what you 

3 said?  

4        Q.   Yes.  

5        A.   No, I wouldn't have known what to be looking 

6 for. 

7        Q.   Have you noticed anything that you believe to 

8 be out of the ordinary with your meter?

9        A.   Well, you know, I have never studied the meter 

10 before, so I wouldn't know what it was to -- for me to be 

11 looking for.  So I don't know.  

12        Q.   And why do you believe a power surge happened?

13        A.   I'm not sure.  Something definitely happened.  

14 Whether it was a power surge or something else, something 

15 definitely happened when this technician within minutes.  

16 He said the electric will be off for 15 seconds.  And then 

17 the next thing I knew, it just -- it was like a gunshot.

18             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Miss Raymond, this is Jim 

19 Lynn.  I have a question. 

20             When you say you noticed there were some of 

21 these problems with your appliances within minutes, was 

22 that after the Wellington technician left?  

23             THE WITNESS:  No. 

24             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  It was while the 

25 Wellington technician was there?  
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1             THE WITNESS:  He heard the refrigerator, but 

2 in the meantime before the foreman or whoever he was, 

3 Bruce, I had already -- the oven and microwave had already 

4 reset itself.  So he did not see that. 

5             But he heard the refrigerator.  Linda from 

6 Wellington heard it.  She is the one that called for the 

7 foreman to come and check.  The first thing he said when 

8 he came in is I checked the meter.  The meter is fine.

9             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Let me back up just so I 

10 understand. 

11             So someone from Wellington arrived at your 

12 home, said they were going to replace your older meter 

13 with a smart meter?  

14             THE WITNESS:  His name was Joe.

15             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Okay.  And while that Joe 

16 was there and doing the replacement, you said that's when 

17 you noticed some of these problems with your appliances?  

18             THE WITNESS:  Within minutes of him saying I'm 

19 going to install it.

20             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Okay.  Okay.  Mr. Rogers, 

21 please go on.

22 BY MR. ROGERS:

23        Q.   When you heard the gunshot was there -- how 

24 did that -- temporally, how did that relate to when your 

25 power went out?  Let me rephrase. 
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1             Did your power go out when -- after the 

2 Wellington meter or after the Wellington technician came 

3 to replace your meter?  

4        A.   You know, you mean as far as my lights and 

5 that?  

6        Q.   Correct.  Did you lose power?

7        A.   You know, I didn't check.  I didn't have any 

8 lights on, so I didn't check. 

9        Q.   So you don't know actually whether this was 

10 just related to a normal power outage?

11        A.   It didn't sound anything like a normal power 

12 outage.  

13        Q.   Why didn't it sound anything like a normal 

14 power outage?

15        A.   Because a normal power outage when it comes 

16 back on it is a little soft hum and then everything comes 

17 on.  It sounded, like I say, a shotgun.  It was a loud, a 

18 loud blast like.  I can't even say a loud pop.  That's the 

19 only way I can describe what happened when I looked up 

20 because I'm sitting in the kitchen doing my bills and I 

21 looked up and that's when I heard the refrigerator right 

22 away and then I saw the microwave and stove. 

23        Q.   Isn't it possible that the loud crack was just 

24 the installation of the meter?

25        A.   No.  All my friends know all about this and 
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1 none of them -- no.  

2        Q.   Were you outside watching him install the 

3 meter?

4        A.   No, I wasn't, but my neighbors all around 

5 were.  

6        Q.   So it sounds like your only evidence that 

7 something happened was because it happened soon after the 

8 Wellington technician came to your door; is that accurate?

9        A.   Yes, within minutes.  My neighbors all said 

10 didn't he say to unplug anything and I said, no, he didn't 

11 say anything like that.  

12             MR. ROGERS:  Objection, Your Honor.  Move to 

13 strike based on hearsay of what her neighbors told her.

14             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Well, Miss Raymond I'll 

15 just ask you this question then. 

16             You are saying that when the Wellington 

17 technician arrived at your home, you were not told by that 

18 technician, I believe you said his name was Joe, you said 

19 that Joe said nothing about -- you were not told to unplug 

20 any appliances; is that correct?  

21             THE WITNESS:  No, no.

22             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Okay.  

23             THE WITNESS:  He seemed like he was in a 

24 hurry.

25             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Okay.  
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1             MR. ROGERS:  Your Honor, I have no further 

2 questions at this time.

3             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Thank you, Mr. Rogers.  

4 Let's see.  I want to thank again, Miss Raymond's daughter 

5 Joelle for emailing us copies of receipts that show 

6 repairs were made.  And I would assume those receipts are 

7 from different companies you contacted and different 

8 expenses you had -- you incurred.  

9             Miss Raymond, I just wanted to be sure -- 

10 after all this happened, and coming up to the present day, 

11 what again -- what were the appliances that you felt were 

12 put out of order by the installation -- out of order or 

13 damaged by installation of that smart meter? 

14             Could you just give me a list again of what, 

15 you know, for example, you were mentioning refrigerator.  

16 I don't know what else there was, a vacuum cleaner.  Could 

17 you just run down the list again, what you felt a problem 

18 was caused?  

19             MS. RAYMOND:  There was the refrigerator.

20             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Okay.  The fridge.

21             MS. RAYMOND:  The cost?  

22             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Well, I believe probably 

23 the cost of getting that checked out was -- that is in 

24 some of the copies of the bills that you sent to us; am I 

25 right?  
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1             MS. RAYMOND:   Right, right.

2             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  So refrigerator and what 

3 else were you?  

4             MS. RAYMOND:  The thermostat.

5             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Okay.  

6             MS. RAYMOND:   The furnace that needed to be 

7 reset.  The house vacuum, and I'm -- I'm -- oh, and Blind 

8 & Sons to reset the -- reset to two-stage and food from 

9 the refrigerator was $200 for the refrigerator and 

10 freezer.  That's what I'm asking for.

11             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Right.  So you are 

12 mentioning refrigerator and freezer, thermostat and I 

13 guess the thermostat -- 

14             MS. RAYMOND:   And then the furnace to be 

15 reset.

16             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  All right.  And then 

17 vacuum and then food.

18             MS. RAYMOND:    That's a total of $561.

19             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Right.  Wow, okay.  And 

20 again, some of this is reflected in the copies of the 

21 bills or receipts that you were given; am I right?  That 

22 is the email that you sent us with the different bills 

23 that you were -- had to pay to have service people come to 

24 your home for like refrigerator, all that information is 

25 contained in what you emailed to us; am I right?  
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1             MS. RAYMOND:   Not the $200 for the food I 

2 don't think, that is the only one.  All of the other bills 

3 are included.

4             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  All right.  Just a minute.  

5 All right.  Fine. 

6             Okay.  Mr. Rogers, you indicated you are 

7 finished with your questioning.  Thank you. 

8             And I believe for the time being, Miss 

9 Raymond, that we are, you know, we are finished with your 

10 comments. 

11             And with that being said, Mr. Rogers, you 

12 indicated you have a witness with you who filed some 

13 testimony in advance, so we'll get into that.

14             MR. ROGERS:  Yes, Your Honor, Ohio Edison 

15 calls John Ahr to the stand.

16             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Oh, it is Ahr.  Mr. Ahr, I 

17 believe we have you connected to us.  And we don't have to 

18 see your picture, but it is kind of helpful I guess. 

19             Any way, Mr. Rogers, go ahead with your 

20 witness, please.

21             MR. ROGERS:  Do you need to swear him, Your 

22 Honor. 

23             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  I will.  

24                           - - -

25
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1                         JOHN AHR,

2 being first duly sworn, as provided by law, was examined 

3 and testified as follows:

4             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Actually if you could 

5 unmute yourself so I could hear you.  I, unfortunately, 

6 don't hear you yet.  Mr. Ahr?  Heather, could you help him 

7 unmute? 

8             MS. CHILCOTE:  Sure.  Sure.  Mr. Ahr, you are 

9 unmuted, but it doesn't look like we can hear you.  Is 

10 your headset on perhaps or are you plugged in all the way?  

11             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Yes, we can hear you now.  

12 Mr. Rogers, please go ahead.

13                     DIRECT EXAMINATION

14 BY MR. ROGERS:

15        Q.   Good morning, Mr. Ahr.  Can you please state 

16 and spell your full name for the record?

17        A.   Yes, John, it is actually Ahr, and it is 

18 spelled A-h-r.  

19        Q.   My apologies for mispronouncing that.  By whom 

20 are you employed and in what capacity?

21        A.   I'm employed with First Energy Service 

22 Company.  I'm an advisor for regulatory compliance for our 

23 smart meter program.  

24                           - - -

25           (Company Exhibit 1, was marked for           
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1           purposes of identification.)

2                           - - -

3 BY MR. ROGERS:

4        Q.   And do you have the document that has been 

5 premarked as Company Exhibit 1, which is your prefiled 

6 testimony?

7        A.   Yes, I do.  

8        Q.   Do you recognize this document?

9        A.   Yes, I do.  

10        Q.   What is it?

11        A.   It is my prefiled testimony for in the -- this 

12 complaint case with Patricia Raymond versus Ohio Edison 

13 Company.  

14        Q.   Did you prepare this or cause this document to 

15 be prepared at your direction and input?

16        A.   Yes, I did.  

17        Q.   If you were asked the same questions that are 

18 in this document here today would your answers be the 

19 same?

20        A.   Yes, they would.

21             MR. ROGERS:  Your Honor, I have no further 

22 questions at this time.  I'll reserve my rights for 

23 redirect.

24             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Sure.  No problem.  Okay.  

25 Mr. Ahr, thank you. 
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1             Miss Raymond, you have indicated that you have 

2 went through the testimony submitted by Mr. Ahr and I 

3 believe you had, at least you did not agree with all of it 

4 certainly -- 

5             MS. RAYMOND:  Right.

6             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  -- as you have said.  

7 Could you indicate to us, again, what you disagree with?  

8 Also, if you have any questions for Mr. Ahr.

9                     CROSS-EXAMINATION

10             BY MS. RAYMOND:  It said the Wellington 

11 foreman and Miss Raymond investigated the refrigerator 

12 beeping and discovered that the refrigerator had been left 

13 open for an extended period of time while Miss Raymond 

14 cleaned it.  I don't know where he got that.  That is 

15 totally false.  

16             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Okay.  

17             MS. RAYMOND:  I never mentioned anything.

18             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  And was there any other?  

19             MS. RAYMOND:  And the door was not opened.  

20 The only time I opened it is when Linda told me to open it 

21 and reboot it.  

22             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Okay.  And was there -- 

23 let's see -- 

24             MS. RAYMOND:  I think that was Bruce from 

25 Wellington.  I'm not sure.  
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1             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  And were there any other 

2 parts of Mr. Ahr's testimony that or Ahr's testimony, 

3 excuse me, that you disagreed with?  

4             MS. NICKEL:  Mr. Lynn, this is Joelle.  May I 

5 speak on my mom's behalf?  

6             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Go ahead.

7             MS. NICKEL:  It is just a little easier for me 

8 to follow the statement.  In discussion with my mom we 

9 took some notes. 

10             It is just in addition to the question that 

11 had been asked did the Wellington foreman assist Miss 

12 Raymond with her alleged appliance damage.  The statement 

13 also indicated that the alarm stopped and what actually 

14 happened is it stopped temporarily.  But it would continue 

15 to go off every few minutes intermittently. 

16             My mom had to check the refrigerator all 

17 night.  She had to unplug and replug it in to reboot it 

18 numerous times.  And when the repair man did come out, he 

19 had to adjust the electrical control panel to repair it.

20             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  When you mentioned control 

21 panel, was that on the refrigerator itself?  

22             MS. NICKEL:  Correct.

23             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  I see.

24             MS. RAYMOND:  I believe he called it the 

25 Board.
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1             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Yes, okay.  

2             MS. NICKEL:  The other issue with the 

3 statement that Mr. Ahr included was that -- can the 

4 installation of a smart meter impact the home's electrical 

5 system or appliances downstream of the meter?  The 

6 response is it is possible, but extremely rare and any 

7 damage caused by the meter installation would typically be 

8 observed at the time the meter is installed. 

9             He indicates no such observation was made at 

10 the time of Miss Raymond's installation.  I believe this 

11 to be false.  My mom believes this to be false. 

12             Immediately following the installation, the 

13 refrigerator, the cable TV, her two TVs, the thermostat, 

14 the furnace, the microwave and oven, the in-house vacuum, 

15 they all stopped functioning within minutes of the 

16 installation of the new smart meter.  The microwave oven 

17 and the stove top oven, they were erratic for 

18 approximately 20 minutes, but then they were able to 

19 reset.  

20             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  So they reset themselves 

21 in a sense?  

22             MS. NICKEL:  Correct.

23             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  And actually I'll just 

24 mention for our court reporter too, the questions that 

25 were just read by Miss Raymond's daughter were -- they 
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1 were, let's see, on page 6 of Mr. Ahr's testimony.  Page 6 

2 it starts with line 12, then also on page 7 of

3 Mr. Ahr's testimony that starts on line 17.  

4             MS. NICKEL:  And then on page 8 starting at 

5 line 8, there is no indication of any electrical damage to 

6 any of Miss Raymond's appliances in Ohio Edison's records. 

7             Well, Ohio Edison didn't check the appliances.  

8 They refused responsibility.  When they supposedly came 

9 out to check the meter, they never indicated that they 

10 were here to check the meter, so my mom doesn't even know 

11 that they came.  

12             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  And that's a reference 

13 to -- actually I guess it was probably someone from 

14 Wellington checking the meter?  

15             MS. NICKEL:  Correct.

16             MR. ROGERS:  Your Honor, we are going to 

17 object again, to the testimony of Miss Nickel.  She has no 

18 personal knowledge and to the extent that she is acting as 

19 Miss Raymond's attorney, I do not believe she is barred in 

20 the State of Ohio.  Improper for her to be acting as an 

21 attorney.

22             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  I will ask Miss Raymond.  

23 Let's see, Miss Raymond again, you are saying that while 

24 the technician was there, some issues came up with your 

25 appliances, that you contacted -- you called -- Miss 
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1 Raymond did you end up calling was it Wellington or was it 

2 Ohio Edison then?  

3             MS. RAYMOND:  No, I called Wellington first.  

4             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  You called Wellington. 

5             MS. RAYMOND:  They left a tag on the door to 

6 contact.

7             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Okay.  So while shortly 

8 after this change of meters took place, you contacted 

9 Wellington and you said again, there are issues with your 

10 appliances occurred while the Wellington technician was 

11 there, apparently the person who came to replace the 

12 meter; am I right?  

13             MS. RAYMOND:  Well, I know they were in the 

14 vicinity, whether they had left my condo or not, I don't 

15 know.  

16             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Okay.  So you, at any 

17 rate, you did contact Wellington?  

18             MS. RAYMOND:  I did and she sent out I believe 

19 it was Bruce.

20             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Right, someone came that 

21 day then, same day?  

22             MS. RAYMOND:  Right.  Right.  Within a few 

23 minutes.

24             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  They came that same day 

25 and they looked at some of the appliances you mentioned 
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1 you were having difficulties with.  Do you recall what 

2 they looked at, what appliances they looked at?  

3             MS. RAYMOND:  He looked -- he stood and looked 

4 at the refrigerator and I believe by then the -- and I 

5 can't say for sure, but the oven and the microwave had 

6 reset or they were all right.  

7             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Okay.  So someone from 

8 Wellington came out.  You called that very day.  They came 

9 out looked at the refrigerator and do you recall what else 

10 they looked at, what other appliances?  

11             MS. RAYMOND:  Well, I think when he left, it 

12 was after he left that -- when I went to sit down to watch 

13 TV, the TV said -- so I called Wellington again.  I always 

14 talked to Matt.  And then when I found out the -- I'm not 

15 sure when I checked the in-house.  They were all the same 

16 day, the in-house vacuum and the thermostat.  I didn't 

17 think to even check anything.  

18             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Was the person who came 

19 out from Wellington, the person you felt was a foreman, 

20 you believe the person's name was Bruce.  So you are 

21 saying they looked at the refrigerator.  They checked the 

22 vacuum cleaner.  They also checked the thermostat issues.

23             THE WITNESS:  I'm not sure.  I know they 

24 checked the refrigerator and the oven and microwave was 

25 all right.
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1             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Okay.  

2             MS. RAYMOND:  I'm not -- I think he did check 

3 the in-house vacuum at that time, but I don't know that he 

4 checked anything else because I didn't realize anything 

5 else was wrong at that time.

6             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Sure.  Okay.  All right.  

7 Let's see, okay.  Hold on, Mr. Ahr, I think I have a 

8 question for you if I can find the right page.  Let's see. 

9             Mr. Ahr, in the testimony you filed, this 

10 would be on page 7.  It would be line 17 through 23.  And 

11 the question was asked, "Can the installation of a smart 

12 meter impact the home's electrical system or appliances 

13 downstream of the meter?  Your answer was -- okay.  And 

14 your answer was it is possible, but extremely rare.  

15 Damage caused by installation would typically be observed 

16 at the time the meter was installed and no such 

17 observation was made at the time of Miss Raymond's 

18 installation."

19             When you are saying no observation was made at 

20 the time of the installation, what is your basis for 

21 saying that?  

22             THE WITNESS:  That would have been in the 

23 report of the installer.  When they would be examining the 

24 meter socket, where the meter is actually installed, 

25 looking for signs of damage, any signs of burning or 
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1 pitting or arcing at that point. 

2             If something were to occur at the time of the 

3 installation, it is likely that there would be some type 

4 of electrical arc or flash at that time that the installer 

5 would have witnessed or been exposed to at the time. 

6             So when they went to put the meter in, there 

7 was no observation like any of that occurred and when they 

8 came back to check that, there was additional no 

9 observation that, you know, there was any burning or 

10 pitting or arcing or discoloration of the meter socket or 

11 the jaws at the time.

12             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  I have a question then.  

13 You mentioned burning coloring, discoloration and so 

14 forth.  Is it possible to observe that kind of thing when 

15 the smart meter is still installed? 

16             In other words, I'm not an electrician.  

17 Would -- is it possible there would be such evidence say 

18 behind the meter in the socket and it could not easily be 

19 seen?  It is covered up by the meter itself that is 

20 still -- the new meter that is still hanging there?  

21             THE WITNESS:  When the installer would have 

22 checked it, they would have pulled off the outside cover, 

23 similar to what is shown in my exhibit.  There is an 

24 outside metal cover that goes over the meter and the 

25 socket. 
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1             So when you pull that off, you do have 

2 visible -- you can visibly see the socket and the jaws and 

3 the meter actually connected there for it.  If there was 

4 burning or pitting or arcing, yes, they would be able to 

5 see that.  

6             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  The question then, when 

7 Miss Raymond called Wellington and someone came out to 

8 check this was, you know, apparently after the initial 

9 installer had left, and you are stating that according to, 

10 I guess it would be Wellington's records, the person who 

11 arrived, who was not the individual who initially 

12 installed the meter, you are saying that that person, you 

13 know, took whatever steps to investigate and did not find 

14 any evidence of damage arcing and so forth; am I correct?  

15             THE WITNESS:  Yes, you are correct.

16             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Okay.  All right.  Let me 

17 see if I have any other questions for you.  Apparently I 

18 do have a question. 

19             Apparently Ohio Edison was able to -- how 

20 should I say this.  When Wellington does its installation 

21 or does a follow-up, say you know what, Miss Raymond 

22 called for someone to come out that same day when some of 

23 these issues came up with appliances, apparently they 

24 don't -- when Wellington does this work, does it then 

25 submit a report to Ohio Edison, like sends it in 
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1 electronically or something?  

2             THE WITNESS:  Yeah.  So during the day's work 

3 of the meter installer, it is all recorded electronically 

4 on their handheld device.  At the end of the day when they 

5 get back to their work location, that information is 

6 uploaded and transferred electronically to Ohio Edison's 

7 records to indicate what was done, what was exchanged, the 

8 old meter number, the new meter number, the account number 

9 to make sure everything that is put on the new account or 

10 the new meter is put on the account.

11             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Okay.  And then I will 

12 assume, we'll call it the foreman, the person who 

13 responded to Miss Raymond's call after these appliance 

14 issues came up, I would assume that this foreman would go 

15 out, find out whatever he could find out or she could find 

16 out and then also send in a report to you folks.  Am I 

17 correct on that?  

18             THE WITNESS:  Yes, that is correct.  There is 

19 a -- like a customer contact database that they provide 

20 all that information to and then our employees have access 

21 to that if they need to research and look up anything.

22             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  All right.  Let's see.  

23 Then apparently before you did your testimony, you checked 

24 that database, checked their records and so on?  

25             THE WITNESS:  Yes, that's correct.  
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1             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  On this particular 

2 instance.  Okay. 

3             Miss Raymond, did you have any additional 

4 questions?  

5             MS. RAYMOND:  I do have a question about why 

6 the information that the Wellington foreman said about me 

7 saying I was cleaning my refrigerator and left the door 

8 open for an extended period of time, none of that.  I said 

9 none of that.  

10             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Okay.  All right.  Okay.  

11 I'll look if I have any additional questions.

12             MS. RAYMOND:  Then it said -- it also said 

13 this caused the refrigerator to alarm indicating that the 

14 temperature was rising.  It wasn't an alarm.  It was a 

15 beep, beep, beep.  I know when the door is open.  I know 

16 the sound that -- the warning sign that your door is open.  

17 None of that.  And I certainly hadn't cleaned my 

18 refrigerator.  

19             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  All right.  Thank you.  

20 Mr. Ahr, I'll take an additional look at your prefiled 

21 testimony just to make sure I don't have anything, any 

22 further questions.

23             MR. ROGERS:  While you do that I have a 

24 follow-up redirect question.

25             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Sure.  Go ahead.
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1                    REDIRECT EXAMINATION

2 BY MR. ROGERS:

3        Q.   Mr. Ahr, does Ohio Edison have access to 

4 Wellington's records?

5        A.   Yes, they do.  

6        Q.   Your statements that the Wellington foreman 

7 and Miss Raymond discovered that the refrigerator door was 

8 open, do you recall where you obtained the information for 

9 that statement?

10        A.   Yes, I looked at the report from Wellington's 

11 information on their investigation.  

12        Q.   So that information is from their report?

13        A.   Yes, that is correct.

14             MR. ROGERS:  I have nothing more at this time, 

15 Your Honor.

16             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Okay.  Thank you.  Miss 

17 Raymond, I believe you probably asked all your questions; 

18 am I right?  

19             MS. RAYMOND:  I have.  I wanted to add that it 

20 did say here -- that it did say here that he did check the 

21 in-house vacuum.

22             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  You are referring to the 

23 Wellington foreman that came to your home?  

24             MS. RAYMOND:  Yes, the one that said that I 

25 said that I left the refrigerator door.
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1             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  All right.  Thank you.

2             MS. NICKEL:  May I ask a question?  

3             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Yes, go ahead.

4             MS. NICKEL:  Okay.  Do we have access to 

5 Wellington's records of that report indicating the 

6 information that is included in Mr. Ahr's statement 

7 because we are refuting it?  

8             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Well, the fact that you 

9 disagree certainly, you know, that's certainly entered in 

10 the court record, yes. 

11             As far as access, that would have needed to be 

12 really requested before the hearing, the request for such 

13 evidence, but certainly it has been noted in the record 

14 that you disagree with what was said.

15             MS. NICKEL:  Okay.  Thank you.

16             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Sure.  I can't think of 

17 anything more.  I do want to mention to everyone first, 

18 thanks for working through all the Internet technical 

19 difficulties.  Thanks to Heather Chilcote, our work 

20 coordinator for working through those things with us and 

21 also to our court reporter for staying with everything.  

22 I'm sure at times it was difficult to hear.

23             I want to mention I did swear in Mr. Ahr and 

24 with all our technical issues early on in the proceedings, 

25 I neglected to swear in Miss Raymond.  Nonetheless, Miss 
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1 Raymond, I'm sure you will swear that all the statements 

2 you made are true from your perspective?  

3             MS. RAYMOND:  Yes.

4                           - - -

5                     PATRICIA RAYMOND,

6 being first duly sworn, as provided by law, was examined 

7 and testified as follows:

8             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Again, with all of our 

9 technical problems, I'm not literally sitting on a bench 

10 the way I would in-person.  I kind of lost track of all 

11 the steps in the process, which I shouldn't have done. 

12             Also, I'll just say this, we also have 

13 exhibits submitted by both parties.  And Mr. Rogers, I'm 

14 thank you for forwarding the exhibits from Miss Raymond to 

15 me.  I will assume that you have no objection to the 

16 exhibits submitted by Miss Raymond.  Have you had a chance 

17 to look at them?  

18                           - - -

19           (Plaintiff's Exhibit 1, was marked for       

20           purposes of identification.)

21                           - - -

22             MR. ROGERS:  We object to the newspaper 

23 article.  It is not authenticated and it is hearsay.

24             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:   Well, we'll then agree to 

25 that objection to the newspaper article, but as far as all 
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1 of the records are concerned, Miss Raymond's case in 

2 particular, certainly those will all be admitted into 

3 evidence. 

4             And then Miss Raymond although you disagree 

5 with some of what Mr. Ahr said in his prefiled testimony, 

6 do you have any objection to admitting that into evidence 

7 for the case?  

8             MS. RAYMOND:  Do I have any objections?  

9             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Right.  Again, you can 

10 disagree to some of his testimony, but do you have any 

11 objection to his written testimony being part of the case?  

12             MS. RAYMOND:  No.

13             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Then for our court 

14 reporter, we'll admit all of those items into evidence.  

15 Both the testimony of Mr. Ahr and then the individual 

16 bills and such received from Miss Raymond and if we can go 

17 off the record for a moment. 

18                           - - -

19             (Discussion was held off record.)

20                           - - -

21             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Back on the record then.  

22 Finally, we do allow for the filing of what is called a 

23 brief.  It does not have to be done.  Miss Raymond, that 

24 is basically just a written summary of the arguments that 

25 were made at the hearing.  Again, it does not have to be 
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1 done.  It is optional. 

2             Mr. Rogers, is your client interested in 

3 submitting a brief?  

4             MR. ROGERS:  We are, Your Honor.

5             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Okay.  Well, and with that 

6 being said, we will come up with a schedule for briefs and 

7 reply briefs.  Again, Miss Raymond that does not have to 

8 be done. 

9             I'll ask our reporter, I believe -- I believe 

10 it takes approximately maybe a couple of weeks for a 

11 transcript to be filed, so let me check my calender here.  

12 It's the 14th.  Let's say if the transcript is filed by 

13 say April 29th, roughly the end of the month, Mr. Rogers 

14 what works for you as far as a date in May for filing a 

15 brief?  

16             MR. ROGERS:  The week of the 23rd would work 

17 best for me, Your Honor.

18             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  23rd, okay.  Why don't we 

19 say then that the brief will be filed by May 27th, that's 

20 the end of that week.  Okay.  And then in June for reply 

21 briefs.  That option is there as well, reply briefs.  If 

22 the briefs are filed May 27th, the reply would be filed -- 

23 if you have a reply to file, Miss Raymond if she files 

24 anything, when would you like to do a reply brief?  

25             MR. ROGERS:  Due to the 4th of July maybe the 
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1 week of the 11th.

2             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  After the 4th of July?  

3 The 4th is on a Monday.

4             MR. ROGERS:  Either Monday the 13th or 14th.  

5 I'm sorry, I'm mixing up my calendars.  June, actually 

6 looks like the reply brief is due end of May, brief due 

7 the end of May, looking too far ahead.  June -- two weeks 

8 after that would be fine with me, Your Honor.

9             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  So we said briefs May 

10 27th, reply briefs June the 10th I believe.

11             MR. ROGERS:  That would work for the company, 

12 Your Honor.

13             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Again, Miss Raymond, those 

14 things are optional.  It is a written summary of the 

15 argument.  It does not have to be done. 

16             With that being said, thanks to everyone for 

17 working through the electronic issues to Heather Chilcote 

18 and to our court reporter, Donna Chafins.  I believe that 

19 is it for today.  Everyone stay safe and stay well and 

20 have a good rest of the week.  To Joelle, thank you for 

21 helping your mom.

22             MS. NICKEL:  No problem.

23             ATTORNEY EXAMINER:  Have a good day.  Bye-bye. 

24                           - - -

25           (Hearing was concluded at 11:28 a.m.)
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1                   C E R T I F I C A T E

2

3           I do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true 

4 and correct transcript of the proceedings taken by me in 

5 this matter on Thursday, April 14, 2022, and carefully 

6 compared with my original stenographic notes.

7

8                     _______________________
                    Donna D. Chafins, Registered

9                     Professional Reporter, and         
                    Notary Public in and for the       

10                     State of Ohio.  

11
My commission expires November 8, 2026.  
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